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	“Your natural inclination is to preach and to warn other travellers of snags in the path, but isn't it better to signal to them some of the joys by the way which they might otherwise miss ?”

Sir Robert Baden-Powell

(1857 – 1941)




	?
	We are seeking :

· Copies of the St Paul’s Parish Church Parish Magazine for this year.

· Copies of the Kent & Sussex Courier for this year.
· How often did the Scouts play competitive football ?
· Any knowledge that you may have of this year.


Can you help ? Please click HERE if you can.
An Easter Monday Sham Fight

24 March 1913

From The Courier - 28 March 1913

Members of the Church Lads’ Brigade had a field day in the neighbourhood of Groombridge and Eridge on Easter Monday.  The operations consisted of a contest between 210 lads belonging to the St James’, Rusthall, Pembury, Tonbridge and Sevenoaks Companies, comprising the Southern Force, with Capt. Paskin, of Sevenoaks, Adjutant of the Rochester Regiment, in command, and 159 lads of the Southwark Regiment.
Capt. W.J. Whitburn, of Tunbridge Wells, Quartermaster of the 1st Rochester Regiment was in charge of the Northern Force, his services being lent to them on account of his knowledge of the country.  The Officers in Command of the local Companies were Capt. S. Knight (St James’), Capt. Henson (Tonbridge), Capt. Bosanquet (Pembury), Capt. Paskins (Sevenoaks), and Capt The Rev. A Tomlinson (Rusthall) who directed the movements of a number of Church Scouts.
All the lads mustered in the morning outside the South Eastern Railway Station at Tunbridge Wells.  Accompanied by their fine bugle band and 22 drums they marched briskly to King Charles’ Church, the parade being an interesting spectacle.  An appropriate address was given at the Church by the Ven. Archbishop A.T. Scott, and Capt. Whitburn was at the organ.  The amateur soldiers afterwards entrained by the L.B. and S.C.R, Capt. Whitburn and his force disembarking for lunch at Groombridge, while the Southern Force went on to Eridge.  
Tactical operations commenced at one o’ clock and lasted for four hours.  The general idea was that the Northern Force had crossed the frontier (the railway line from Tunbridge Wells to East Grinstead), and occupied the country southwards from the High Rocks Hotel to Groombridge.  The Southern Force at Eridge, hearing of this, had to try to drive the enemy back across the frontier.
The umpires were Major R. Saunders Johnson Commanding 1st Rochester Battalion, and Major Douglas of the Southwark Regiment, who travelled the country in a motor car.  Their decision on points was in favour of the Southern Force.
The fight throughout was a very interesting one, and many of the boys displayed considerable military skill.  
The combined companies afterwards marched to Rusthall for tea at the Institute and Parish Room, and afterwards returned to the S.E. and C.R. Station, being thoroughly worn out by their strenuous exertions. 
The Whit Monday CLB Annual Inspection

12 May 1913

From The Courier - 16 May 1913

On Whit Monday the Rochester Cadet Battalion Church Lads’ Brigade visited Sevenoaks to hold their annual inspection under Cadet regulations in Montreal Park, kindly placed at their disposal by the Right Hon. Earl Amherst.  
Numbering about 400, the Cadets represented the following Companies : Kippington, Sevenoaks, Riverhead, St James’ (Tunbridge Wells), Rusthall, Tonbridge, Malling, Pembury, Bromley, Plaistow, Bevedere, Frindsbury, Erith, Brompton, Shorne and Higham.  Some 100 Church Scouts and CLB Training Corps were also present from Tunbridge Wells, Sevenoaks, Rusthall, Pembury, Riverhead, Erith and Higham, but these did not take part in the official inspection.
Mustering at Sevenoaks Station at about 10.30 a.m., the Cadet Battalion, headed by their fine Bugle Band, marched to Riverhead Church, the parade being an interesting spectacle. The Scouts were headed by the Belvedere Drum and Fife Band, and marched in fine style.
The Parade Service was conducted by the Rev. G.F. Bell, (Chaplain, Riverhead Company), assisted by the Rev W.J.Carder (Assistant Chaplain).  The church was packed to its utmost capacity, and presented a memorable scene.  The address by the Rev G.F.Bell was listened to very attentively, and the hymns were sung with great heartiness.
The service being over, the Battalion marched to Montreal Park, where various movements were practised for the inspection which took place at 1pm, by Capt. Waring, Adjutant, Royal West Kent Regiment, detailed for this purpose by the General Officer Commanding the district. The Battalion was drawn up in line, and received the inspecting officer with the general salute, and after a very careful inspection of all the ranks, the Battalion marched past in column, returning in quarter column, and deploying again into line they advanced in review order.  
Various Companies were then put through company drill, squad drill, and physical drill.  The Bugle Band was drawn from Tunbridge Wells and Tonbridge Companies, and the Belvedere Drum and Fife Band played during the inspection of the ranks.  
The inspection being over, lunch was partaken of at the conclusion of which tactical operations commenced between two forces drawn from the various Companies, in which the Scouts joined.  The general idea was that the Western Force under the command of Maj. Scriven (Shorne) had crossed the frontier (the road Ide Hill to Sundridge), and occupied Manor and Norman-street Farms.  The Eastern Force under the command of Capt Paskin (Sevenoaks Adjutant), hearing of this, had to try and capture the two farms and drive the enemy across the frontier. The umpires (Major R. Saunders Johnson C.O. Rochester Cadet Battalion, assisted by Major Simms, Belvedere, and Capt Whitburn, Tunbridge Wells), travelled the country in a motor car and were accompanied by Capt. Waring the inspecting officer.  
The fight was a very interesting one, and many of the cadets showed considerable military skill.  The ‘cease fire’ going at 6 p.m., the Eastern Force were in possession of Manor Farm and were then attacking Norman-street Farm, the fight being unfinished. 
The Companies then marched back to Riverhead, where tea was partaken of, and then proceeded to the station en route for their respective destinations 
Church Scouts in Camp
Reigate

1 to 8 September 1913

From The Courier - 12th September 1913

The Southern District Camp of the Incorporated Church Scout Patrols was held at Glover’s Farm, Reigate from September 1st to September 8th.  The Staff was as follows:  Commandant, Major R. Saunders Johnson;  Chaplain, Rev. A Tomlinson ;  Adjutant Capt. J. Paskin;  Quartermaster, Staff-Sergeant H. A. Kemp;  Chief Superintendent, Supt. H Goodwin.  The total of all ranks was 65, the patrols represented being  St. James’s Tunbridge Wells, Kippington, St.Paul’s Rusthall, Bourenemouth, Hadlow, and Riverhead C.L.B Training Corps.  Besides these we were glad to welcome several old Scouts and members of the C.L.B. on Saturday and Sunday. 
The weather was very bad, especially at the beginning of the week;  so much so, indeed,  that three Patrols were ordered to sleep on the first night in a five-roomed cottage, which had been most kindly placed at their disposal by a resident at Reigate, in order that the ground might have time to dry.  In spite of rain and mist, however, there was very little call made on the resources of the hospital tent, except for wasp stings.
The daily routine was as follows:  Reveille was at 7 a.m.;  at 7.30 a.m. and at 8.30 a.m. there was a three minute silence for prayers, a provision which is found to be invaluable in maintaining the spiritual tone of the camp; at 7.35 cocoa and biscuits were served out;  ten minutes ;later the call went for Adjutant’s Parade, which was generally devoted to physical drill;  the Scouts had breakfast at 8.30 and the Officers at 9.00;  at 10.30 there was C.O.s Parade, at which the Chaplain read the short Scout Service appointed for such occasions.  The parade generally took the form of extended work and practice for the inspection.  On being dismissed, the lads fell in behind their kits and the C.O. inspected the lines.  The way in which the tents and kit were kept was deserving of high praise, and it was seldom possible to find the smallest bit of paper or rubbish in or near the tents.  
At 12 the Scouts were marched down for Bathing Parade at Reigate Swimming Baths.  This item in the day’s routine vied closely in popularity with the meal which was Scouts’ dinner at 1p.m.  Tea was at 5p.m., and on the two days when the weather allowed it, there was exciting Scouting expeditions on the beautiful hills adjoining the camp, at 5.30 p.m.  When it was too wet to venture out of camp, sing-songs were held, to the great delight and edification of all concerned, especially the performers.
At 8.10 the night guard was mounted and alert sentries guarded the camp from intrusion from without.  Sentry-go is always a popular duty, and is very useful in developing the boys’ self reliance and sense of responsibility.  
At 8.15 cocoa rations were served out in the lads’ mess tent, and a hymn having been sung, a five minute talk was given by the Chaplain or the Assistant Chaplain.  Lights out was sounded at 9 p.m., and a minute or two later, when silence reigned supreme in the lads’ lines, the officers repaired to supper, and to talk over the next day’s work. 
On Saturday the camp was inspected by Colonel H. Graham Taylor, who was accompanied by Capt. A. H. Boyd.  He was received with the general salute, and after the lads had been inspected, they marched past in column and back again in quarter columns.  They then advanced in review order and gave the general salute.
Colonel Murray Smith, having expressed a desire to see some of the work in the field, several movements, such as extending and closing and wheeling in extended order, were carried out, first under the C.O., and then under the Guides of the various groups (Johnny Conn of the Church Lads’ Brigade Historical Group has confirmed that Guides were leaders). The Scouts then fell back behind their kits, and a thorough inspection of kit took place.  At the conclusion of the inspection, the Colonel said that the camp was the cleanest he had ever seen.  He had been quite unable to find the slightest vestige of rubbish of any kind, though he had searched carefully for it.  He was very much impressed with the steadiness of the Scouts on parade, especially in their advance to the salute, and the march past over rough ground.  The extended work was very good, the wheeling in extended order being a very fine bit of work, and all the orders were carried out with intelligence and extreme promptitude.
The Archbishop of Tonbridge then said a few encouraging words to the Scouts, and voiced their gratitude to Major Douglas for the use of the camping ground., and to several friends who had most kindly sent fruit etc., to the camp.
The sports then took place. They included flat races, three-legged races, relay races. kit competitions, signalling etc.  Swimming races had been held at the Baths on the previous day  
On Sunday there was a celebration of the Holy Communion at &.45, matins and address in the lads’ mess tent at 10.30 and in the evening a church parade at the Reigate Parish Church.  
The camp was struck on Monday morning, and the various detachments marched off homewards with the recollection of a most enjoyable camp engraved in their minds.
Hospital Sunday

Pre-1914

From the St Pauls Church Parish Magazine – September 1960
What excitement among the youth of the Parish on this day !
Such banners and tassels, such an exhibition of strength on the part of the holders of the two vertical poles proudly bearing the name of the Friendly Society, and the tassel-holders to help the balance.

Did we ever have a wet Hospital Sunday ? In memory they always seem to have been clear and fine.

The brass bandsmen in their uniforms from Crowborough and Wadhurst or elsewhere, the followers of the organisations with their emblems of office, past and present, the members of the adult and youth societies all added colour and glamour to the scene; and the zeal of the collectors among the crowds of spectators throughout a smaller but populous Rusthall and Denny Bottom, on Sunday afternoon when the procession was augmented with various small boys and girls to whom the martial music and the pageantry meant an all-pervading excitement on the day and after; the church parade when the front pews of the church glistened with the regalia of the occasion of mostly annual exhibition amid these surroundings.

The procession included some tableaux of the nursing and hospital service with helpers suitably attired. The ingenuity and camouflage employed successfully conveying the desired result and one forgot that normally they were coal or agricultural vehicles.

The bandsmen, having blown themselves nearly to a standstill by the time the procession reached the church, normally preferred to rest awhile on the common before again rejoining the procession after the service.
This procession, headed by the local constable, then proceeded towards the top of Church Road, Tunbridge Wells and, having encountered the many paraders along the “Mount” and benefitted thereby, returned to disperse in Rusthall High Street – the bandsmen and banner-holders needing no further encouragement to quench their thirst at the nearest available public house admid the admiring gaze of the onlookers.

EH Roe
Rusthall v Speldhurst

Saturday 1 November 1913
Rusthall Scouts lose football match 10-1 to Speldhurst Junior Football Club which had been formed earlier in the year. 
	Boxing Day 1913
With thanks to Clive Roberts, author of “Rusthall’s Fallen”, we know that :

Boxing Day, 1913 was celebrated by many at a concert party, presided over by Rev Tomlinson at the Parish Hall where wonderful and varied entertainment was provided by the Rusthall CETS. On the programme was a physical drill display by the Boy Scouts and the Girl Guides demonstrated ambulance work and ribbon drill. Entering into the spirit of the evening the Rev Tomlinson performed his own version of ‘Three Men in a Boat’. This was followed by an amusing rendition of ‘As I Was Going to St Ives’ sung by Mr W Hollamby and Mr N Maunder.

Photographs of our un-named Scouts and Guides that appeared in The Courier on 2 January 1914 – under the heading “CETS Entertainment at Rusthall – Boy Scouts and Girl Guides in Tableaux”.
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Scout Movement Milestones - 1913
	May
	Duke of Connaught appointed first President.

	
	

	July
	18,000 Scouts attend Birmingham Exhibition & Rally.


Click HERE if you have any further information regarding this year
or

HERE to return to our Navigation page
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